
 

Kelso City Council Agenda 
Regular Meeting, 6:00 pm 

May 3, 2016 
City Hall, Council Chambers 

203 South Pacific 
Kelso, WA  98626 

 
 

                                **Special accommodations for the handicapped and hearing impaired are available 
 by special arrangement through the City Clerk’s Office at 360-423-0900** 

 
 
 
Roll Call to Council Members: 

 
 

Invocation: 
Nick Stumbo from East Hills Alliance Church 

  
 
1. Approve Minutes: 

1.1. April 19, 2016 – Regular Meeting 
 

 
2. Proclamation: 

2.1. Salvation Army Week 
2.2. Mental Health Month 
2.3. Transportation Week 
2.4. Bike Month 
2.5. Police Week 

 
 
3. Presentation: 

3.1. Police Department 
3.2. National Law Enforcement Officer of the Year 

 
 
4. Consent Items: 

4.1. Contract – Construction Services, Fence/Beacon Tower 
4.2. Contract – Construction Services, Sullivan Hangar Demolition  
 
 

5. Citizen Business: 
 

 
6. Council Business: 



 

Kelso City Council Agenda 
Regular Meeting, 6:00 pm 

May 3, 2016 
City Hall, Council Chambers 

203 South Pacific 
Kelso, WA  98626 

 
 
 

 
7. Action/Motion Items: 

7.1. Ordinance, 2nd Reading 
7.1.1. Adopt Shoreline Master Plan 

 
 

Other Items: 
• City Manager Report 
• Staff/Dept Head Reports 
• Council Reports 
• Other Business 
• Executive Session 



KELSO CITY COUNCIL                                                                           April 19, 2016 
6:00 P.M.                                                                                       REGULAR MEETING 
 
Pastor Brian Cummings, New Song Worship Center, gave the invocation.  Mayor David 
Futcher led the flag salute.  The Regular Meeting of the Kelso City Council was called to 
order by Mayor Futcher.  Councilmembers in attendance were Kim Lefebvre, Rick 
Roberson, David Futcher, Jim Hill, Todd McDaniel, and Nancy Malone.  Councilmember 
Larry Alexander was absent. 
 
Minutes:  Upon motion by Councilmember Roberson, seconded by Councilmember Hill, 
‘Approve the Minutes of the 4/5/16 Regular Meeting,’ motion carried, all voting yes. 
 
PROCLAMATIONS: 
 
Mayor Futcher read a proclamation declaring May 2nd – 8th, 2016, as “Children’s Book 
Week” in the City of Kelso.  Library Manager Cindy Donaldson accepted the 
proclamation.  
 
PRESENTATIONS: 
 
Cowlitz Wahkiakum Council of Governments:  Executive Director Bill Fashing 
provided an update on the current and planned activities of the Cowlitz Wahkiakum 
Council of Governments (CWCOG). 
 
CONSENT AGENDA:   
 

1.  Interlocal Agreement Addendum No. 1, County Rural Public Funds – West 
Main Revitalization Project 

2.  Interlocal Agreement Addendum No. 2, County Rural Public Funds – West 
Main Revitalization Project 

3.  Interlocal Agreement Addendum No. 2, County Rural Public Funds – 
Airport Stopway Project  

4.  Interlocal Agreement Addendum No. 4, County Rural Public Funds – 
Airport Stopway Project 

5. Auditing of Accounts:  $1,851,808.04 
 
Upon motion by Councilmember McDaniel, seconded by Councilmember Lefebvre, 
‘Approve the Consent Agenda and the Auditing of Accounts in the amount of 
$1,851,808.04,’ motion carried, all voting yes. 
 
CITIZEN BUSINESS: 
 
COUNCIL BUSINESS: 
 
Agreement Renewal – Gordon Thomas Honeywell Governmental Affairs Lobbying 
Services:  Upon motion by Councilmember McDaniel, seconded by Councilmember  



Kelso City Council                               -2-                                  4/19/16 Regular Meeting 
 
Roberson, ‘Approve the Agreement Renewal with Gordon Thomas Honeywell 
Governmental Affairs Lobbying Services.’  City Manager Steve Taylor and Gordon 
Thomas Honeywell Governmental Affairs representative Alex Soldano provided an 
overview.  Discussion followed.   Motion passed, all voting yes. 
 
MOTION ITEMS:         
 
Ordinance No. (1st Reading) – Adopt Shoreline Master Plan:  The Deputy Clerk read 
the proposed ordinance by title only.  Upon motion by Councilmember Roberson, 
seconded by Councilmember Lefebvre, ‘Pass on 1st reading, ‘AN ORDINANCE OF THE 
CITY OF KELSO, WASHINGTON ADOPTING AN UPDATED SHORELINE 
MASTER PROGRAM AND SHORELINE MAP, AGREEING TO CHANGES 
PROPOSED BY THE WASHINGTON STATE DEPARTMENT OF ECOLOGY, AND 
AUTHORIZING THE SUBMITTAL OF THE UPDATED SHORELINE MASTER 
PROGRAM FOR FINAL APPROVAL.’  Steve Taylor provided an overview.  
Discussion followed.  Motion passed, all voting yes. 
 
Ordinance No. 16-3869 – 2016 Limited Tax General Obligation Bonds:  The Deputy 
Clerk read the proposed ordinance by title only.  Upon motion by Councilmember 
McDaniel, seconded by Councilmember Roberson, ‘Adopt Ordinance No. 16-3869, ‘AN 
ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF KELSO, WASHINGTON, RELATING TO 
CONTRACTING INDEBTEDNESS; PROVIDING FOR THE ISSUANCE, SALE AND 
DELIVERY OF NOT TO EXCEED $3,600,000 AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT 
OF LIMITED TAX GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS TO PROVIDE FUNDS TO 
PAY THE COSTS OF CERTAIN STREET AND STORMWATER IMPROVEMENTS 
AND TO PAY THE COSTS OF ISSUANCE AND SALE OF THE BONDS; FIXING 
OR SETTING PARAMETERS WITH RESPECT TO CERTAIN TERMS AND 
COVENANTS OF THE BONDS; APPOINTING THE CITY’S DESIGNATED 
REPRESENTATIVE TO APPROVE THE FINAL TERMS OF THE SALE OF THE 
BONDS; AND PROVIDING FOR OTHER RELATED MATTERS.’ Senior Vice 
President of DA Davidson & Co. and Bond Attorney Marc Greenough of Foster Pepper 
PLLC, provided an overview.  Discussion followed.  Motion passed, all voting yes. 
 
Ordinance No. 16-3870 – Shopping Cart Regulations:  The Deputy Clerk read the 
proposed ordinance by title only.  Upon motion by Councilmember Lefebvre, seconded 
by Councilmember Hill, ‘Adopt Ordinance No. 16-3870, ‘AN ORDINANCE OF THE 
CITY OF KELSO RELATING TO SHOPPING CART THEFT AND REGULATION 
AMENDING 9A.56.270 AND ADDING A NEW CHAPTER 9.62 SHOPPING CART 
CONTROL TO THE KELSO MUNICIPAL CODE.’  Steve Taylor provided an 
overview.  Lengthy discussion followed.  Councilmembers Futcher, Lefebvre, McDaniel, 
Roberson and Hill voted yes.  Councilmember Malone voted no.  Motion passed, 5 to 1. 
 
Ordinance No. 16-3871 – Amending KMC 8.20 Fireworks:  The Deputy Clerk read 
the proposed ordinance by title only.  Upon motion by Councilmember Hill, seconded by  



Kelso City Council                               -3-                                  4/19/16 Regular Meeting 
 
Councilmember McDaniel, ‘Postpone until next meeting.’  City Attorney Janean Parker 
provided an overview.  Lengthy discussion followed.  Motion failed, all voting no.  Upon 
motion by Councilmember Lefebvre, seconded by Councilmember McDaniel, ‘Adopt 
Ordinance No. 16-3871, ‘AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF KELSO AMENDING 
KELSO MUNICIPAL CODE CHAPTER 8.20 FIREWORKS TO REVISE 
PERMITTING AND APPROVAL PROCEDURES AND REFLECT CHANGES IN 
STATE LAW.’  Councilmembers Lefebvre, Roberson, Futcher, Malone and McDaniel 
voted yes.  Councilmember Hill voted no.  Motion passed, 5 to 1.   
 
Ordinance No. 16-3872 – Vacate Portion of Talley Way Right of Way:  The Deputy 
Clerk read the proposed ordinance by title only.  Upon motion by Councilmember 
Lefebvre, seconded by Councilmember McDaniel, ‘Adopt Ordinance No. 16-3872, ‘AN 
ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF KELSO VACATING A PORTION OF TALLEY 
WAY ROW IN THE CITY OF KELSO TO A CITY OWNED PARCEL OCCUPIED 
BY THE SOUTHWEST WASHINGTON REGIONAL AIRPORT,’  motion passed, all 
voting yes. 
 
Resolution No. 16-1156 – Adopt West Kelso Subarea Plan:  The Deputy Clerk read 
the proposed resolution by title only.  Upon motion by Councilmember Roberson, 
seconded by Councilmember Lefebvre, ‘Pass Resolution No. 16-1156, ‘A 
RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KELSO, WASHINGTON 
ADOPTING THE WEST KELSO SUBAREA PLAN,’ motion carried, all voting yes. 
    
MANAGER’S REPORT: 
 
Steve Taylor:  1) Announced the departure of Planning Assistant Stephanie Helem and 
Administrative Programs Manager Amy Mullerleile.  He requested authorization to post 
two positions: Planning Manager and Associate Planner but only hire one. This process 
would insure hiring the best candidate.  2) Requested an increase in base pay for the 
Assistant Finance Director position.  The Administrative Programs Manager position will 
now include human resources and risk management.  This would require posting the open 
position of Accounting Manager/Assistant Finance Director at a higher classification 
level.  Upon motion by Councilmember Roberson, seconded by Councilmember 
Lefebvre, “Authorize City Manager to search for Planning Manager, Associate 
Planner and Accounting Manager/Assistant Finance Director positions.’  Lengthy 
discussion followed.  Councilmembers Lefebvre, Roberson, Futcher, Malone, 
McDaniel voted yes.  Councilmember Hill voted no.  Motion passed, 5 to 1. 
 
COUNCIL REPORTS: 
 
Nancy Malone:  No report. 
 
Todd McDaniel:  Commented that the first meeting of the Charter Committee meeting is 
scheduled for Tuesday, April 26, 2016 at 5:30 and is open to the public. 



Kelso City Council                               -4-                                  4/19/16 Regular Meeting 
 
Jim Hill:  No report. 
 
Rick Roberson:  No report. 
 
Kim Lefebvre:   No report. 
 
David Futcher:   No report. 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION: 
 
At 7:45 p.m., Mayor Futcher announced that the Council would convene into executive 
session to discuss pending litigation and is expected to last approximately 5 minutes,   
action will be taken.  The city attorney was present. 
 
At 7:50 p.m., it was announced that the executive session would be extended for 5 more 
minutes. 
 
The Council reconvened into regular session at 7:58 p.m. 
 
Upon motion by Councilmember Hill, seconded by Councilmember Lefebvre, 
‘Accept the settlement with TNN LLC Noel Mclean in the amount of $89,343.00 
related to the West Main Realignment Project,’ motion passed, all voting yes. 
 
There being no further business, Mayor Futcher adjourned the meeting at 8:00 p.m. 
 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
                                 MAYOR 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
                            CITY CLERK 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Proclamation 
National Salvation Army Week 

May 9-15, 2016 
 
 

WHEREAS, since 1922, the Salvation Army’s only business throughout the communities of Cowlitz County as 
everywhere, is ‘human’ business, undertaken with joy for the family of humankind to the great glory of God; and 
 

WHEREAS, since the first pronouncement by President Dwight D. Eisenhower in 1954, the Salvation Army has 
celebrated National Salvation Army Week with various activities and events around the country; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Salvation Army acts on behalf of all the residents of our county, with neither salvation nor any 
other condition prerequisite, nor expecting any thanks, yet nonetheless welcoming community support; and 
 

WHEREAS, nearly 30 million Americans receive assistance from The Salvation Army each year thorough a broad 
array of social services that range from providing food for the hungry, relief for disaster victims, assistance for the 
disabled, outreach to the elderly and ill, clothing and shelter to the homeless and opportunities for underprivileged 
children. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, I, David Futcher, Mayor of the City of Kelso, do hereby declare May 9th – 15th, 2016, as  

“National Salvation Army Week”, in the City of Kelso 
 
 
 
 

   

 In witness whereof, I have hereunto 
 set my hand and caused the seal of 
 the City of Kelso to be affixed this 
 3rd day of May, 2016 
  

 
      
 David Futcher, Mayor  



Proclamation 
Mental Health Month  

May 2016 
 

WHEREAS, mental health is essential to everyone’s overall health and well-being; and 
 

WHEREAS, addressing early the complex mental health needs of children, youth, and families today is fundamental 
to the future of Cowlitz County; and 
 

WHEREAS, mental health problems can affect all areas of a person’s life, including school, home and work; and 
 

WHEREAS, mental health problems will strike one in five adults and children each year regardless of age, gender, 
race, ethnicity, religion or economic status; and 
 

WHEREAS, over 38,000 American lives are lost each year to suicide; and 
 

WHEREAS, all Americans – from combat veterans to hurricane victims – are vulnerable to chronic mental health 
problems associated with trauma and can benefit greatly from early identification and treatment; and 
 

WHEREAS, people can recover from mental illness and lead full, productive lives in the community; and 
 

WHEREAS, an estimated two-thirds of adults and young people with mental health problems go without the help 
they need; and 
 

WHEREAS, each business, school, government agency, healthcare provider, organization and citizen bears the 
burden of mental health problems and has a responsibility to promote mental wellness;  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, I, David Futcher, Mayor of the City of Kelso, do hereby proclaim the month of May to be 

“Mental Health Month”, in the City of Kelso, and call upon the citizens of Kelso, government agencies, 
public and private institutions, businesses and schools to recommit our community to increasing awareness and 
understanding of mental health and the need for appropriate and accessible services for all people with mental illness. 
 

   

 In witness whereof, I have hereunto 
 set my hand and caused the seal of 
 the City of Kelso to be affixed this 
 3rd day of May, 2016 
  

 
      
 David Futcher, Mayor  



Proclamation 
 

National Transportation Week  
May 11-17, 2016 

 

WHEREAS, Kelso has a long history as a transportation provider since 1889; and 
 

WHEREAS, Kelso owns 74 miles of streets and alleys and operates and maintains 4 bridges; and 
 

WHEREAS, Transportation services provided in Kelso are an integral part of the everyday lives of its citizens, 
promoting clean, healthy neighborhoods and establishing vibrant communities; and 
 

WHEREAS, The City’s regional transportation infrastructure is essential in sustaining an economy which greatly 
impacts our livability, business, and commerce; and 
 

WHEREAS, The importance and value of our nations’ transportation system and those components built and 
maintained by Kelso including our city streets, bike and pedestrian facilities, culverts, rights-of-way, alleys, and 
bridges; and 
 

WHEREAS, The quality and effectiveness of transportation projects and services enjoyed by citizens of Kelso are 
dependent upon the skills of the qualified and dedicated Public Works employees; and 
 

WHEREAS, The contributions of the Public Works employees include regional and local planning and coordination 
with other jurisdictions; 24-hour service from road and bridge maintenance staff; road and bridge engineers designing 
and construction up-to-date facilities; traffic and sign staff installing and maintaining pavement markings and traffic 
signage; surveyors providing the necessary surveys for design and construction of road projects including 
topographic and right-of-way surveys and construction staking; right-of-way specialists ensuring safe and usable 
land for the transportation system; environmental compliance staff overseeing the Count’s compliance with local, 
State and Federal water quality rules; and administrative and financial support professionals that keep our offices 
running smoothly; and 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, I, David Futcher, Mayor of the City of Kelso, do hereby proclaim May 11-17, 2016, as 
National Transportation Week in the City of Kelso. 

   

 In witness whereof, I have hereunto 
 set my hand and caused the seal of 
 the City of Kelso to be affixed this 
 3rd day of May, 2016 
  

 
      
 David Futcher, Mayor  



Proclamation 
 

National Bike Month  
May 2016 

 

WHEREAS, Cowlitz Bikes and Cowlitz on the Move are promoting May, 2016 as National Bike Month as 
part of their healthy lifestyles campaign; and 
 

WHEREAS, the education of bicyclists and motorists, as to the traffic laws pertaining to the use of bicycles, and to 
the proper and safe operation of bicycles including helmet use is important to ensure the safety and enjoyment of all 
users within the roadway environment; and 
 

WHEREAS, creating a bicycling-friendly community has been shown to be an effective, low cost means to improve 
citizens’ health, well-being, and quality of life; and 
 

WHEREAS, bicycling-friendly improvements enhance quality of place for visitors and citizens, attracting tourism 
dollars and creating communities attractive to new employers, employees and families; and 
 

WHEREAS, bicycling improvements enhance traffic safety for all users, helping to reduce pollution, congestion, and 
wear and tear on our streets and roads; and 
 

WHEREAS, we encourage all citizens to experience the joys of bicycling by riding their bicycle to work, to school, to 
the store, to the park, and around their neighborhoods to promote the personal and societal benefits achieved from 
bicycling. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, I, David Futcher, Mayor of the City of Kelso, do hereby proclaim May 2016, as National 
Bike Month in the City of Kelso. 

   

 In witness whereof, I have hereunto 
 set my hand and caused the seal of 
 the City of Kelso to be affixed this 
 3rd day of May, 2016 
  

 
      
 David Futcher, Mayor  



Proclamation 
 

National Police Week  
May 15-21, 2016 

 

WHEREAS, The Congress and the President of the United States have designated May 15 as Peace Officer 
Memorial Day, and the week in which May 15 falls as National Police Week; and 
 

WHEREAS, there are approximately 900,000 law enforcement officers serving in communities across the United 
States, including the dedicated members of the Kelso Police Department; and 
 

WHEREAS, some 60,000 assaults against law enforcement officers are reported each year, resulting in 
approximately 16,000 injuries; and 
 

WHEREAS, since the first recorded death in 1791, more than 20,000 law enforcement officers in the United States 
have made the ultimate sacrifice and been killed in the line of duty; and 
 

WHEREAS, the names of these dedicated public servants are engraved on the walls of the National Law 
Enforcement Officers Memorial in Washington, D.C.; and 
 

WHEREAS, 124 names are being added to the National Law Enforcement Officers Memorial this spring, 124 killed 
in 2015 including 2 in Washington State; and 
 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, I, David Futcher, Mayor of the City of Kelso, formally designate May 15-21, 2016, as 
National Police Week in the City of Kelso and publically salute the service of law enforcement officers in our 
community and the communities across the nation.  We further direct that pursuant to Public Law 103-322 that all 
flags be flown at half-staff on Monday May 16, 2016, Peace Officer’s Memorial Day, in honor of the fallen officers and 
their families. 

   

 In witness whereof, I have hereunto 
 set my hand and caused the seal of 
 the City of Kelso to be affixed this 
 3rd day of May, 2016 
  

 
      
 David Futcher, Mayor  



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 
Business of the City Council 
City of Kelso, Washington 

 
 
SUBJECT TITLE: Construction Services 
Agreement with Reid Middleton – 
Fence/Beacon Tower  
 
 
 
 
PRESENTED BY:  
Steve Taylor 

 
Agenda Item:    
 
Dept. of Origin: SW WA Regional Airport   
 
For Agenda of:  May 3, 2016   
 
City Attorney:     Janean Parker  
 
City Manager:       Steve Taylor   
 

 

Agenda Item Attachments:    
Professional Services Agreement – Construction Services Reid Middleton: Perimeter Fence & Beacon 
Tower Replacement 
 
 
SUMMARY STATEMENT: 
 
Reid Middleton is the City’s consulting engineer for FAA Airport Improvement Program projects 
conducted at the Southwest Washington Regional Airport.  Construction services for the Talley Way 
Perimeter Fencing & Beacon Tower Replacement Project will be provided by the engineering 
consultant for the estimated fee of $70,177.  All monies necessary to fund the construction services 
have been identified without financial impact to the City of Kelso. 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  
 
Move to approve Agreement with Reid Middleton for Construction Services for the Perimeter Fence & 
Beacon Tower Replacement Project in the amount of $70,177. 











































AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 
Business of the City Council 
City of Kelso, Washington 

 
 
SUBJECT TITLE: Construction Services 
Agreement with Reid Middleton – Sullivan 
Hangar Demolition  
 
 
 
 
PRESENTED BY:  
Steve Taylor 

 
Agenda Item:    
 
Dept. of Origin: SW WA Regional Airport   
 
For Agenda of:  May 3, 2016   
 
City Attorney:     Janean Parker  
 
City Manager:       Steve Taylor   
 

 

Agenda Item Attachments:    
Professional Services Agreement – Construction Services Reid Middleton: Sullivan Hangar Demolition 
 
 
SUMMARY STATEMENT: 
 
Reid Middleton is the City’s consulting engineer for FAA Airport Improvement Program projects 
conducted at the Southwest Washington Regional Airport.  Construction services for the Sullivan 
Hangar Demolition Project will be provided by the engineering consultant for the estimated fee of 
$68,250.  All monies necessary to fund the construction services have been identified without 
financial impact to the City of Kelso. 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  
 
Move to approve Agreement with Reid Middleton for Construction Services for the Sullivan Hangar 
Demolition Project in the amount of $68,250. 
 







































AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 
Business of the City Council 
City of Kelso, Washington 

 
 
SUBJECT TITLE:  AN ORDINANCE OF THE 
CITY COUNCIL OF KELSO, WASHINGTON 
ADOPTING AN UPDATED SHORELINE 
MASTER PROGRAM AND SHORELINE 
MAP, AGREEING TO CHANGES PROPOSED 
BY THE WASHINGTON STATE 
DEPARTMENT OF ECOLOGY, AND 
AUTHORIZING THE SUBMITTAL OF THE 
UPDATED SHORELINE MASTER 
PROGRAM FOR FINAL APPROVAL. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
PRESENTED BY:  
 
Steve Taylor 

 
Agenda Item:    
 
Dept. of Origin: City Manager   
 
For Agenda of:   May 3, 2016   
 
Originator:    Amy Mullerleile__    
 
 
 
City Attorney:     Janean Parker  
 
City Manager:       Steve Taylor   
 

 

Agenda Item Attachments:    
Ordinance 
Kelso Shoreline Master Program  
http://www.kelso.gov/sites/default/files/docs/kelso_smp_doe_adoption_draft_wout_tc_04-14-16.pdf 
Appendix B - Shoreline Environmental Designation Map 
http://www.kelso.gov/sites/default/files/docs/appx_b_sed_map.pdf 
Appendix C – Critical Areas Regulations 
http://www.kelso.gov/sites/default/files/docs/appx_c_cao_clean.pdf 
Exhibit A – Redline KMC 18.08 
 
SUMMARY STATEMENT: 
The City began the process of updating the Shoreline Master Program (SMP) in 2012 in concert with 
several other Cowlitz County jurisdictions funded by a grant from the Department of Ecology. After 
numerous challenges and leadership changes the City hired Gregg Dohrn to help facilitate the 
completion of the document with the previously selected consultant Parametrix.  
 
A series of public involvement opportunities were presented including the formation of a technical 
advisory committee and a public hearing at the May 12, 2015 Planning Commission meeting. On June 
9, 2015 the Planning Commission recommended the City Council adopt the proposed Shoreline 
Master Program. A few minor changes were made in response to the public comments that were 
received and Gregg Dohrn gave a presentation to Council on the draft document at the Council 
meeting on June 16, 2015. On July 7, 2015 the City Council adopted Resolution No. 15-1137 

http://www.kelso.gov/sites/default/files/docs/kelso_smp_doe_adoption_draft_wout_tc_04-14-16.pdf
http://www.kelso.gov/sites/default/files/docs/appx_b_sed_map.pdf
http://www.kelso.gov/sites/default/files/docs/appx_b_sed_map.pdf
http://www.kelso.gov/sites/default/files/docs/appx_c_cao_clean.pdf
http://www.kelso.gov/sites/default/files/docs/appx_c_cao_clean.pdf


expressing the intent to adopt the draft and authorizing its submittal to the Washington State 
Department of Ecology (DOE) for final approval. 
 
Since its submission DOE has distributed the document to interested parties and agencies, provided a 
30 public comment period, and performed considerable staff review of the proposed Program. DOE 
provided the City with a list of required and recommended changes to comply with the statutory 
requirements of the Washington State Shoreline Management Act. On April 1, 2016 the Director of 
DOE issued the City a conditional letter of approval stating that if the City agrees to DOE’s required 
and recommended changes they were prepared to take final action to approve the Program and it 
would go into effect 14 days later. The City has agreed to those recommended and required changes 
and they are reflected in the exhibits accompanying this item. The proposed ordinance will adopt the 
SMP and accompanying documents and make the new program effective 14 days after DOE’s final 
action.  
 
This ordinance also repeals KMC 18.08 which adopts the current SMP by reference. A similar 
reference will be placed in the updated development regulations that are currently under review by 
staff and will be brought forward for Council consideration in the fall. This will not impact the 
implementation of the Program in the interim and will reduce redundancy in amendments to the 
KMC. 
 
The SMP is a comprehensive regulatory document which contains many complex and technical 
components; all of these documents will be made available via the City’s website but the provisions 
contained in the body of the Kelso Shoreline Master Program, Appendix B - Shoreline Environmental 
Designation Map, and Appendix C – Critical Areas Regulations are the crux of the Program. 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  
Make a motion to approve Ordinance adopting the updated Shoreline Master Program and Shoreline 
Environmental Designation Map on second reading. 
 
 

http://www.kelso.gov/ShorelineMasterProgramUpdate
http://www.kelso.gov/sites/default/files/docs/kelso_smp_doe_adoption_draft_wout_tc_04-14-16.pdf
http://www.kelso.gov/sites/default/files/docs/appx_b_sed_map.pdf
http://www.kelso.gov/sites/default/files/docs/appx_b_sed_map.pdf
http://www.kelso.gov/sites/default/files/docs/appx_c_cao_clean.pdf


 1 

ORDINANCE NO.  __________ 
 

 AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF KELSO, 
WASHINGTON ADOPTING AN UPDATED SHORELINE MASTER 
PROGRAM AND SHORELINE MAP, AGREEING TO CHANGES 
PROPOSED BY THE WASHINGTON STATE DEPARTMENT OF 
ECOLOGY, AND AUTHORIZING THE SUBMITTAL OF THE 
UPDATED SHORELINE MASTER PROGRAM FOR FINAL APPROVAL. 
 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Kelso adopted a Shoreline Master Program in 1977 in 

accordance with the provisions of the Washington State Shoreline Management Act; and  
 

WHEREAS, the City has now completed a process to update its Master Program as 
required by state law in accordance with state regulations and state guidelines; and 

 
 WHEREAS, the City of Kelso has conducted an extensive public process to review and 
update the Shoreline Master Program including a public visioning meeting, several public 
workshops, public meetings of a technical advisory committee, consultation with affected private 
property owners and public agencies, and public meetings of the City Planning Commission and 
City Council; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City has conducted an environmental review of the proposed updated 
Shoreline Master Program and has issued a Determination of Non-Significance in accordance 
with the provisions of the Washington State Environmental Policy Act; and  

 
WHEREAS, the City Council met with the City Planning Commission on April 21, 2015 

to receive a report on the status of the draft updated Shoreline Master Program and to discuss the 
most recent comments provided by the Washington State Department of Ecology; and  

  
WHEREAS, the City Planning Commission conducted a public hearing on May 12, 2015 

to receive comments on the draft updated Shoreline Master Program; and  
   
WHEREAS, on June 9, 2015 the City Planning Commission reviewed public comments 

and forwarded the draft updated Shoreline Master Program to the Kelso City Council with a 
recommendation to approve the document, subject to final approval by the Department of 
Ecology; and  

 
 WHEREAS, on July 7, 2015 the City Council reviewed the recommended updated 
Shoreline Master Program for the City of Kelso and adopted Resolution No. 15-1137 authorizing 
its submittal to the Washington State Department of Ecology for review and approval; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Department of Ecology then reviewed the draft updated Shoreline 
Master Program submitted by the City and successfully distributed it for public review and 
comment in accordance with the provisions of RCW 90.58; and  

 
WHEREAS, the City has further revised the updated Shoreline Master Program to 

respond to comments submitted to the Department of Ecology during the final public review 



 2 

process as well as comments required and recommended by the Department of Ecology in order 
to meet statutory and guideline requirements; and  

 
WHEREAS, on April 1, 2016 the Department of Ecology notified the City in writing that 

has conditionally approved the City’s updated Shoreline Master Program subject to confirmation 
that the City accepts all required and recommended changes to the document.  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KELSO DO ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1.  Updated Kelso Shoreline Master Program Adopted.  The City hereby 
adopts the updated Kelso Shoreline Master Program, as attached in Exhibit A, and as 
subsequently approved by the Washington State Department of Ecology. 

 
SECTION 2.  Updated Shoreline Map Adopted.  The City hereby adopts the updated 

Shoreline Environmental Designation Map in substantially the same form as the map in Exhibit B, 
and as subsequently approved by the Washington State Department of Ecology as the Official 
Shoreline Map for the City of Kelso. 

 
SECTION 3.  Acceptance of Recommended and Required Changes. The City Manager 

is hereby authorized to notify the Department of Ecology that the City Council accepts and has 
incorporated all required and recommended changes from the Department Ecology into the updated 
Shoreline Master Plan, as attached in Exhibit A, and the updated Shoreline Map, as attached in 
Exhibit B. The City Manager is further authorized to take such action as may be necessary to 
complete the adoption process in accordance with the provisions of state law and to implement the 
updated Shoreline Master Program and Shoreline Map.  

 
SECTION 4.  Current Master Program Repealed. The current City of Kelso Shoreline 

Master Program, Shoreline Map, and Kelso Municipal Code Chapter 18.08 Shoreline Master 
Program Adopted, are hereby repealed on the effective date of the updated Shoreline Master 
Program. 

 
 SECTION 5.  Severability.  Should any section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of 
this Ordinance, or its application to any person or circumstance, be declared unconstitutional or 
otherwise invalid for any reason, or should any portion of this Ordinance be pre-empted by state or 
federal law or regulation, such decision or pre-emption shall not affect the validity of the remaining 
portions of this Ordinance or its application to other persons or circumstances. 
 
 SECTION 6. Effective Date of the updated Shoreline Master Program and Map.  
The updated Shoreline Master Program and the updated Shoreline Map shall go into effect 
fourteen days following written notice by the Department of Ecology of final approval. 
  

 ADOPTED by the City Council and SIGNED by the Mayor this ____ day of _______ 

___________, 2016. 



 3 

       ____________________________________ 
MAYOR 

 
 
ATTEST/AUTHENTICATION:     
 
 
________________________________ 
CITY CLERK 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
________________________________ 
CITY ATTORNEY 
PUBLISHED: _____________________ 



Exhibit A  

The Kelso Municipal Code is current through Ordinance 3864, passed December 12, 2015.  

 Chapter 18.08 

SHORELINES MASTER PROGRAM ADOPTED 

Sections: 
18.08.010    Adopted. 
18.08.010 Adopted. 
The shorelines management master program for the county, prepared by the Cowlitz-Wahkiakum regional planning 
commission, December 18, 1973, and adopted by the county board of commissioners on August 17, 1977, as it now 
exists or as hereafter amended, three copies of which are on file with the city clerk, is adopted by this reference in its 
entirety as the shorelines management master program for the city insofar as the same is applicable. (Prior code § 
15.08.010) 


	1. - 2016-05-03
	1.1 - 2016-04-19 Minutes
	2.1. - Salvation Army Week 05-03-2016
	2.2. - Mental Health Month 05-03-2016
	2.3. - National Transportation Week 05-03-2016
	2.4. - National Bike Month 05-03-2016
	2.5. - National Police Week 05-03-2016
	4.1. - Ag Sum - Contract Construction Services Reid Middleton Fence-Beacon
	4.1.1 - Contract Services Fence-Beacon
	4.2. - Ag Sum - Contract Construction Services Reid Middleton
	4.2.1 - Contract Services Sullivan Hangars
	7.1. - Ag Sum  SMP Final Adoption 04142016
	7.1.1. - SMP Final Adoption Ordinance
	7.1.1.1. - Exhibit A

